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SUPPORT FOR ATMOSPHERIC SCIENCES (SAS)
QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES
1.  QUESTION:   Reference L.14 (b) (1) the inclusion of the Total Compensation Plan in Mission Suitability Item (a) seems misplaced. A separate line item in the Government's preferred order, showing no page limitation is recommended.

RESPONSE:  The Government concurs with your request and has reordered the table to include separate line items for Total Compensation Plan with no page limitation in Section L.14 (b) (1)

2.   QUESTION:  Reference L.14 (b) (1) Past Performance Volume (c) Past Performance Questionnaire. The asterisk (*) indicating this component is required by the significant contractor is missing.

RESPONSE:  The Government concurs and has added the “*” to the required components in Section L.14 (b) (1).

3.  QUESTION:  Reference L.16 (3) SUBFACTOR C, page 21, paragraph 4. The reference to performance-based contracts seems misplaced for this SAS CPFF contract.

RESPONSE:    The “performance-based” information has been removed from Section L.16 (3).

4.  QUESTION:  Reference L.14(b)(1) The asterisk (*) indicating the Basis of Estimates, Cost Volume Item (c) is required for the significant contractors is inconsistent with the Section L Cost Proposal format instructions. If a BOE is required from the significant contractors, will the Government provide guidelines for this requirement?

RESPONSE:  The Government Pricing Model (GPM) requires cost information for subcontractors, inclusive of significant subcontractors if applicable for the contract period of 5 years.

5. QUESTION: Reference L.17.1 Paragraph 6. There is a reference to proposed subcontract costs and related cost information from the offeror and subcontractor. This item is not covered in the Cost Proposal Format Section. Since this is an IDIQ contract, there is no initial contract task to respond to. The subcontract will be an open-ended services requirement contract. Will the Government provide instructions in the format section specifying the information required?

RESPONSE: The Government concurs that there is no initial task; however the GPM requires cost information for subcontractors if applicable for the contract period of 5 years.

6.  QUESTION:  Reference Section L .16(3) Subfactor C - MANAGEMENT PLAN/CAPABILITIES, Page 20, Paragraph 3. The Offeror is required to identify critical positions from the list of positions in Exhibit 18 and to provide a list of the qualification associated with the respective critical position. This contract is an IDIQ contract with no specific work assignments identified with the Draft RFP. In addition, the experience associated with the position descriptions in Exhibit 18 include the categories of work defined in the SOW for the respective labor categories that represents the required capability and the responsibility level commensurate with the skill level for each skill category. With these contract conditions, can the Government provide additional guidance for identifying critical conditions? In view of the qualifications associated with Exhibit 18 positions, can the Government provide guidance as to what additional experience/capability is required? Does the required PD information go in the Management Section or can it be an Appendix outside the page count?

RESPONSE:  The Government considers the positions identified in exhibit 18 as critical to the performance of the contract.  The offeror is not required to identify critical positions from exhibit 18.

7. QUESTION:  Section L.16(3) Subfactor C Management Plan/Capabilities 1st paragraph page 22 and last paragraph page 22 and continuing on 1st paragraph page 23 call for the identification of critical facilities and equipment and critical property and plant equipment and the plan for their acquisition if not in the offeror’s possession . The documents released by the Government as the Draft RFP do not state a requirement for contractor provided off-site facilities or equipment for performance of the contract. Additionally, given the IDIQ task order nature of the contemplated contract, it is not clear how the offeror is to identify the critical items of facility and equipment in the absence of any tasks. Since there is no requirement for off-site support will the Government drop these referenced statements or provide clarifying information necessary to answer the question?

RESPONSE:  The Government has deleted the 2nd paragraph at the top of page 23 in Section L.16 (3).

8. QUESTION:  Sec. L.14 (a) (4), p.11 and Sec. L.17.1, p. 24. Please clarify if the requirement is for the electronic files to be in Word/Excel and PDF format, or in Word/Excel or PDF format.  

RESPONSE:  The requirement is for the electronic files to be in Word/Excel “and” PDF format.  See additional information in Section L.14 (a) (4).
9. QUESTION:  Sec. L.14 (a) (6), p.11. Some text appears to be missing in the last two sentences in this paragraph. Please clarify what is required.

RESPONSE:  L. 14 (a) (6) is corrected to remove the last two sentences from the text.
10. QUESTION:  Sec. L.14 (b) (1), p.12. It appears that some text is missing at the end of the paragraph. Please clarify the requirement.

RESPONSE:  The Government concurs and has made changes to the paragraph in section L.14 (b) (1).
11. QUESTION:  Sec. L.14 (b) (1), p.12. Item (a) in the Mission Suitability Volume identifies a requirement for a “SOW Compliance Matrix.” Is it the Government’s intent that the Compliance Matrix be limited to the elements of the SOW, or should the Compliance Matrix identify the location in the Offeror’s proposal of the response to all requirements (i.e., those for the RTO and Management Plan in addition to the SOW functional areas covered in the Understanding the Requirements sub-factor)?

RESPONSE:  The Government has deleted the requirements for the SOW compliance matrix.
12. QUESTION:  Given that Sec. L.16.3, p.18 specifies that the offeror is “not required to address each functional requirement item-by-item that is specified in the SOW”, please clarify how compliance should be demonstrated in the compliance matrix.  

RESPONSE:  The Government has deleted the requirement for the SOW compliance matrix.
13. QUESTION:  Sec. L.16.3, p.18 indicates that offerors are “not required to address each functional requirement item-by-item that is specified in the SOW.” This will lead to an inability to perform an “apples-to-apples” comparison among different proposals as offerors will likely have covered different SOW requirements. To avoid such a situation, we recommend that GSFC identify which SOW requirements (down to the sub-level, e.g. 1.2, 2.1, etc.) offerors should address. We note that GSFC has followed such an approach in the RFP for the Geophysics, Geodynamics, and Space Geodesy (GGSG) contract (RFP NNG10316070J-1) currently in competition.

RESPONSE:  That is correct, the government does not require that offerors respond to each functional requirement item-by-item specified in the SOW. However, the government requirements are stated in Section L16.3 which states “the offeror provide a narrative response that demonstrates a broad understanding of the support services necessary to perform the functional requirements of the Statement of Work (SOW).  The offeror shall demonstrate a detailed understanding of the nature of the support services required in the three key functional areas of instrumentation, data analysis, and numerical modeling, and discuss the critical issues associated with each.”  

14. QUESTION:  Sec. L.14 (b) (1), p.12. The Page Limitations for the Cost Volume are identified as “Mixed,” with only the Basis of Estimate portion containing a page limitation. Traditionally, Cost Volumes in GSFC proposals also include some narrative (other than the BOEs) presenting supporting information and details that complement the Cost Exhibits. Please confirm that such narrative is excluded from the page limitations of the Cost Volume.

RESPONSE:  The page limitation for the basis of estimate includes the narrative, it was not excluded.  

15. QUESTION:  Sec. L.14 (b) (1), p.12. We respectfully suggest that the page limitation for the Basis of Estimate be clarified to be a total of 20 pages, including the prime and significant subcontractor(s).  

RESPONSE: The Government concurs and has changed the footnote and deleted the asterisks after “pages.”
16. QUESTION:  Sec. L.14 (b) (1), p.12. We respectfully suggest that the page limitation for the Past Performance volume be clarified to be a total of 25 pages, including the prime and significant subcontractor(s). 

RESPONSE:  The Government concurs and has changed the footnote and deleted the asterisks after “pages.” 

17. QUESTION:  Sec. L.16.2, pp.17-18 requires that the Mission Suitability Proposal and the Cost Proposal must follow the WBS contained in Attachment A, SOW.

RESPONSE:  A WBS was not provided as part of the Statement Of Work (SOW).  The information in L.16.2 that refers to the WBS has been deleted.

18. QUESTION:  a. Please clarify if the WBS refers to the numbered items in Section II. Functional Requirements of the SOW. Namely, 1.0, 1.1, 1.2, 6.11.

RESPONSE:   Reference to a WBS has been deleted.  Proposals shall address the Functional Requirements listed in the SOW, but not necessarily all of the items. 

b. Please clarify that the requirement to organize the Mission Suitability Proposal by these WBS numbers only applies to Sub-Factor A. Understanding the Requirements. Specifically, please confirm that responses to Sub-Factor B. RTO and Sub-Factor C. Management Plan/Capabilities do NOT need to be organized following the WBS.

RESPONSE:  References to a WBS have been deleted.  Sub-factor A should address the offeror's understanding of the Functional Requirements listed in the SOW, but not necessarily all of the items.  Responses to sub-factors B and C need not be organized according to structure of the SOW.

 19. QUESTION:  Sec. L.17.2 (i), p. 29 requires that cost estimates for the RTO be provided at the third WBS level. Please clarify what is meant by WBS here. We respectfully suggest that the instructions in Sec. L.16.3.Sub-factor B, p. 19 include the requirement that the offerors create a WBS for the RTO tailored to the work necessary to achieve the RTO objectives, for this purpose.
RESPONSE:   The Government has deleted all references to the WBS; therefore, offerors are not required to create a WBS for the RTO.

20. QUESTION:  Sec. L.16.2, p.18 indicates that NF 533 reporting under any eventual contract must also follow the WBS contained in Attachment A, SOW. We respectfully recommend that GSFC reconsider this requirement. Traditionally, 533 reporting are provided at the task or sub-task level with sub-tasks often associated with funding sources, thus providing the RAs with the ability to allocate charges to the appropriate JON. As noted in Attachment A, SOW, most tasks cover multiple WBS areas with overlapping activities, thus making a division of work/financial reporting by WBS impractical and insufficient to allow RAs to allocate costs to the proper funding source.

RESPONSE:  The WBS information listed in L.16.2 has been deleted. 

21. QUESTION:  Sec. L.16.3.Sub-factor C, p.18 requires that offerors “demonstrate their ability to identify and provide the necessary scientific and technical skills, understanding and expertise” to meet the SOW requirements. Exhibit 18, supplied by the Government, contains Position Descriptions for all non-M&A staff, and therefore seems to identify these skills, understanding, and expertise. Please clarify what offerors must provide.

RESPONSE:  The offeror shall demonstrate their ability to identify and provide personnel with the necessary scientific and technical skills, understanding, and expertise.”  

 22. QUESTION:  Sec. L.16.3. Sub-factor C, p. 20. Exhibit 18 lacks Position Descriptions for some categories, including both additional technical categories/grades and management and administration categories/grades (including off-site M&A), that some offerors may believe are necessary. Will offerors be permitted to augment or revise the categories in Exhibit 18?  

RESPONSE:  The Government is satisfied with the position descriptions described in Exhibit 18.  No Additional technical/categories and grades are required.  However, offerors are expected to provide management and administration categories/grades including off-site M & A.  

23. QUESTION:  Sec. L.16.3. Sub-factor C, p. 20. Please confirm that off-site M&A categories should be added to Exhibit 18.

RESPONSE:  Exhibit 18 only lists the technical positions required for the contract; however, the offeror shall provide off-site M & A in Exhibit 14 of the GPM.

24. QUESTION:  Sec. L.16.3.Sub-factor C, p.21. The requirements for the surveillance plan include instructions to relate the proposed surveillance approach to facilitation of the Government’s performance evaluation. However, given that the proposed contract will be CPFF, it is not clear what is meant by “the Government’s performance evaluation.” Please clarify.

RESPONSE:  The Government’s performance evaluation will consist of the annual completion and publication of the Government’s assessment of performance under the SAS contract.  

25. QUESTION:  Sec. L.16.3.Sub-factor C, p.21. Instructions for the Phase-In plan require offerors to “demonstrate an ability to assume full contract responsibility on the effective date of the contract.” (i.e., on Sept. 30) The requirements also indicate that the phase-in will be the first task order, to be accomplished over a 45-day period, with the ongoing task orders commencing upon completion of the phase-in period. The requirement to assume “full contract responsibility on the effective date of the contract” is not consistent with the transition of the ongoing task orders only upon completion of the phase-in (i.e., on Nov. 15). We respectfully recommend changing the wording of the requirement in Section L to be similar to that used in the evaluation criteria in Section M (p. 43) that reads “…evaluate the adequacy of the offeror’s phase-in plan to assume full responsibility for the on-going Task Order requirements by the conclusion of the phase-in contract.”

RESPONSE:  The Government concurs with your recommendation and has changed the language in Sec. L.16.3 Sub-factor C, to read as follows “The phase-in plan shall clearly demonstrate an ability to assume full contract responsibility immediately following the phase-in period.”

26. QUESTION:   Sec. L.16.3.Sub-factor C, p. 22. The first paragraph on p. 22 covers “critical facilities and equipment” while the last paragraph on p. 22 covers “critical property and plant equipment.” Given that both paragraphs address requirements for equipment required for performance of the contract, we recommend that they be combined, or at least moved to appear consecutively. Please also clarify the distinctions (if any) between the different categories of equipment.

RESPONSE:  The last paragraph under Subfactor C has been deleted in its entirety.

27. QUESTION:  Sec. L.16.3.Sub-factor C, p. 23. We recommend that the requirements for “facility items” at the top of p. 23 be moved to appear after the first paragraph on p. 22, to be adjacent to the previously cited requirements for facilities.

RESPONSE:  The Government concurs and the information is moved as stated.

28. QUESTION:  Sec. L.17.1, p.25 describes requirements for off-site facilities with space for off-site employees, but does not specify how the costs of such facilities should be billed, i.e., whether as ODCs or built into the off-site rates. We respectfully suggest that GSFC require that off-site facility costs be built into the off-site (indirect) rates, to permit billing only for space actually used, minimize cost to the government, and reduce the potential for offeror “game playing.”

RESPONSE:  The government cannot direct a contractor to bill their off-site service in a specific way.  Offerors shall submit their pricing in accordance with that offeror's accounting system.
29. QUESTION:  Sec. L.17.2 (g), p.29 refers to bid rates proposed in Attachment B. Please clarify what is meant by Attachment B. Should the reference is to Exhibits 1A and 1B?

RESPONSE: Attachment B to the contract is where offerors will list their Direct Labor Rates, Indirect Rates and Fixed Fee. These rates will be used throughout the 5 year period of the contract for task ordering pricing.
30. QUESTION:  To streamline data entry and/or minimize spreadsheet and file linking required, we respectfully recommend combining all Cost Exhibits into a single Excel file (i.e., incorporating Exhibits 1A, 1B, 2A, and 2B into the spreadsheet with the remaining Exhibits) for the final RFP. 

RESPONSE:  The Government respectfully declines the request and is satisfied with how the cost exhibits are stated in the solicitation.

31. QUESTION:  Sec. L.17.1 (i), p. 30 requires submission of BOEs for significant subcontractors. To simplify and clarify the content of the BOEs, we respectfully recommend that offerors be permitted to provide an integrated BOE covering prime and significant subcontractor(s). This approach is consistent with the prime offeror being responsible for the overall effort and for identifying and managing the portion of the work to be performed by subcontractors. The prime offeror’s BOE can be required to identify specific portions to be subcontracted and the methods employed by the subcontractor and/or prime to estimate the cost of completing that work. 

RESPONSE:  The government requires insight into the BOE between the Prime and the subcontractors. Therefore, BOEs for the prime and sub should be submitted separately.
32. QUESTION:  Sec. L.18 (a), p. 32. We respectfully request that GSFC consider altering the threshold for relevant past performance references from prime offerors to include efforts with a minimum average annual cost/fee incurred of $5M. This will ensure that cited contracts are large enough to be relevant in size (at approximately 25% of the annual IDIQ maximum ordering value) to the proposed SAS contract. 

RESPONSE:  The Government respectfully declines the request and believes the requirement stipulated in L.18 (a) is appropriate.

33. QUESTION:  Sec. L.18 (a), p. 32. We respectfully request that GSFC consider altering the definition of significant subcontractors for the purpose of the Past Performance volume to include proposed subcontractors with an estimated average annual cost/fee of $2M. This standard sets the threshold level for SAS subcontractor performance at 10% of the approximate annual IDIQ value, a significant portion of the proposed contract’s work, which we believe merits review of their Past Performance qualifications (in particular if the subcontractor is supporting a mission-critical activity).

RESPONSE:  The Government respectfully declines the request and believes the requirement stipulated in L.18 (a) is appropriate.

34. QUESTION:  Sec. L.19, p.37. Please clarify whether the Government prefers a single list of acronyms for the entire proposal, with copies included as Appendix A in each volume, or separate lists of acronyms in each volume, defining only the acronyms contained within that particular volume.

RESPONSE:  The government requires a single comprehensive list; however copies shall be duplicated and placed in each volume of your proposal.
35. QUESTION:  Sec. M.4(c).Sub-factor C, p.41 indicates the Government will evaluate the managerial positions identified for adequacy and compliance. Please clarify what is meant by “compliance” in this context; i.e., what criteria must the positions comply with?

RESPONSE:  The Government has changed the requirement from “compliance” to “effective.” 

36. QUESTION:  Sec. M.4(c).Sub-factor C, p.42 refers to “The completed Exhibit 18 matrices…” The Government has provided the completed Exhibit 18 in the RFP, so there is apparently no need or opportunity for offerors to complete anything in Exhibit 18. Please clarify what is required.

RESPONSE:  The Government concurs and has deleted the sentence in Section M.4(c)

37. QUESTION:  Sec. M.4(c).Sub-factor C, p.42. The evaluation criteria for the staffing plan do not include evaluation of the “methods, practices, and incentives for recruitment and retention” as required to be addressed by Sec. L.16.3.Sub-factor C (p.20). We respectfully recommend adding this evaluation factor in Sec. M.4(c).

RESPONSE:  The Government concurs and has added the required information in Section M.4 (C).

38. QUESTION:  Sec. M.4(c).Sub-factor C, p.42. The evaluation criteria for the surveillance plan include an assessment of the proposed surveillance approach to facilitating the Government’s performance evaluation. However, given that the proposed contract will be CPFF, it is not clear what is meant by “the Government’s performance evaluation.” Please clarify.

RESPONSE:  See response to Question #24

39. QUESTION:  Sec. M.4(c).Sub-factor C, p.42. There is no evaluation factor for the requirements associated with Corporate Resources under Sec. L.16.3.Sub-factor C, p.20. We respectfully recommend adding this evaluation factor in Sec M.4(c).

RESPONSE:  The Government concurs and has added the required information in Section M.4 (C).

40. QUESTION:  Sec. M.4(c).Sub-factor C, p.43. The last sentence of the first paragraph on p. 43 refers to evaluation of the offerors processes to ensure the orderly transition of tasks being performed by another contractor. There are no corresponding requirements in Section L. We respectfully recommend adding this requirement to Sec. L.16.3.Sub-factor C.

RESPONSE:  The government changed the word “smooth” to “orderly” in section L; to ensure continuity in section M.

41. QUESTION:  Sec. M.4(c).Sub-factor C, p.43. The last paragraph on p.43 refers to evaluation of the “quality and quantity” of “exempt/non-exempt”; executive, administrative and professional support personnel.” Please clarify how personnel quality and quantity will be evaluated in the context of the Total Compensation Plan.
 RESPONSE:  The government has revised the paragraph under Subfactor C to read as follows “The Government will evaluate the appropriateness of the offeror's proposed "exempt/non-exempt", executive, administrative and professional support personnel based on the training, experience and skills required in the position descriptions for these roles” 

42. QUESTION:  Sec. M.4(c).Sub-factor C, p.44. There is no evaluation factor for the requirements associated with property and plant equipment under Sec. L.16.3.Sub-factor C, p. 22. We recommend that such a factor be added to Sec. M.4(c).Sub-factor C.

RESPONSE:  The government has deleted the requirement under the subfactor.

43. QUESTION:  Sec. M.4(c).Sub-factor C, p.44. The third paragraph on p. 44 refers to evaluation of the “consistency” of the compensation/benefits plan among the categories of labor proposed. Please clarify the criteria to be used for evaluating “consistency;” i.e., does it refer to the compensation/benefits being the same or different across categories of labor, or is there some standard against which the compensation/benefits will be compared?
RESPONSE:  The Government’s evaluation of consistency is in accordance with NFS provision 1852.231-71, “Determination of Compensation Reasonableness,” and FAR provision 52.222-46, “Evaluation of Compensation for Professional Employees.” These two provisions are now cited in the referenced paragraph.

44. QUESTION:  Exhibit 18. The Experience write-up for the Support Scientist IV labor category ends abruptly with some text missing. Please provide the complete description.

RESPONSE:  Exhibit 18 has been corrected to show the entire text for each category

45. QUESTION:  Exhibit 18. The Experience write-up for the Programmer Analyst labor category ends abruptly with some text missing. Please provide the complete description.

RESPONSE:  Exhibit 18 has been corrected to show the entire text for each category.

46. QUESTION:  Exhibit 18. The Experience write-up for the Instrument Engineer III labor category ends abruptly with some text missing. Please provide the complete description.

RESPONSE:  Exhibit 18 has been corrected to show the entire text for each category.
47. QUESTION:  Exhibit 18. Two Positions have the same name (Technical/Research Assistant). Please clarify.

RESPONSE: One is a Technical/Research Assistant II and the other is a Technical Research Assistant.  Exhibit 18 has been corrected to show the complete requirement.

48. QUESTION:  Exhibit 1A. “+++Loaded OFFSITE Bid Rate must match the Offeror Management/Administrative Direct Labor Loaded OFFSITE Bid Rate derived in Exhibit 2E.” 
RESPONSE: No, Exhibit 2E is included in the draft; the sentence is corrected to read “... derived in “Exhibit 2B”
49.  QUESTION:  1) Please provide additional insight into the intent of, or context associated with, the Section M, SubFactor B evaluation bullets, a) & b), p41. Namely, 
RESPONSE:  Section M, SubFactor B has been rewritten to clarify evaluation criteria in the final RFP.
50. QUESTION:  a) Thoroughness and applicability of how the task would be performed;

RESPONSE:  Section M, SubFactor B has been rewritten to clarify evaluation criteria in the final RFP.
51. QUESTION: (b) Thoroughness and applicability of how the technical approach and schedule would be completed;”
RESPONSE:  Section M, SubFactor B has been rewritten to clarify evaluation criteria in the Final RFP.
52. QUESTION:  2) Please clarify the redundancy in SubFactor A (Section M-4) Para. 1 & 2?  Do you mean the following …?  The Government will evaluate the overall contract understanding, (beyond the 3 SOW technical functional areas identified), by evaluating contractor’s general approach to finding the necessary scientific and technical skills, understanding, and expertise, as well as general ability to identify and manage technical risks under this multi-task contract. 
RESPONSE:  Yes, This is exactly what the government means. Slight modifications have been made in Section L, Subfactor A and Section M, Subfactor A.

53. QUESTION:  Page 47 from Section M contains information related to costing for the RTO and states that the total cost will not be presented to the Source Selection Authority. If cost estimates and the BOE are established why are the total and probable costs not  

RESPONSE:  The RTO cost is being evaluated to determine if an offeror truly understands the work, and how it should be staffed and costed, if it were a real task issued under the contract. 

54. QUESTION:  General - Is the Government expecting to conduct a Bidders Conference for this procurement? If so, when in the procurement cycle do you anticipate scheduling it?

RESPONSE:  The Government is not planning to conduct a Bidders Conference.

55. QUESTION:  Cover Letter; Title Sheet; Attachment A - Please clarify the name of the contract. The Subject indicated in the Cover Letter indicates “Support for Atmospheric Services (SAS) Contract” while the first sentence refers to “Support for Atmospheric Sciences (SAS).” Also, the Statement of Work in Attachment A indicates “Support for Atmospheric Sciences (SAS).” Which is correct: ‘Sciences’ or ‘Services’?

RESPONSE:  The correct title is “Support for Atmospheric Sciences.”

56. QUESTION:  L.14 (b) 1 - A sentence that begins “Additional instructions for each component of the proposal are located in the contract” appears on page 12 of 50. Is there a continuation of this sentence?  

RESPONSE:  The information has been changed to read as follows: “Additional instructions for each component of the proposal are located in the contract provision noted under the Reference column in the Table below.”

57. QUESTION:  L.14 (b) 1 - The table that indicated page limitations per proposal component uses an asterisk to point to a footnote to the table. The footnote reads “Prime and each individual significant subcontractor.” The footnote is applied to the “Basis of Estimates” component in the Cost Volume as well as to the “Information from the Offeror” component in the Past Performance Volume. Please clarify the intent of the footnote. Does it mean that the 20-page limit for the Basis of Estimates component and the 25-page limit for the Past Performance Information from the Offeror are applied to those submitted by the prime and separately applied to those submitted by each significant subcontractor? Or, is it the Government’s expectation that the prime and significant subcontractors will each have BOEs in their cost proposals and that these will add to a cumulative total of 20 pages? Is it the Government’s expectation that the prime and significant subcontractors will each have Information from the Offeror in their past performance proposals and that these will add to a cumulative total of 25 pages?

RESPONSE:  The government added additional information to the footnote to read as follows: *Prime and each individual significant subcontractor (Page limitations are for the prime and significant subcontractor combined). 

58. QUESTION:  Paragraph L.14 (a) 2 defines “significant subcontractor” as any subcontract that exceeds 15% of the annual IDIQ Maximum Ordering Value of $20M which is calculated to $3M. This requirement is stated in connection with providing and additional copy of significant subcontractor Cost Proposals to the Defense Contract Auditing Administration (DCAA). However, in the Cost Proposal Instructions in L.17.1, appearing on Page 24 of 50, the definition of a ‘significant subcontractor’ is one has an anticipated subcontract “expected to exceed 15% or more of the IDIQ maximum ordering value or GPM value.” Is this 15% threshold to be applied on an annual basis or on the basis of the total maximum ordering value?

RESPONSE:  The 15% is to be applied to the total estimated cost of the Government Pricing Model (GPM). 

59. QUESTION:  Is the SOW Compliance Matrix only required to be provided for the Mission Suitability Volume?

RESPONSE:  The requirement for the SOW Compliance Matrix is deleted.
60. QUESTION:  L.16.2; L.16.3 - This paragraph requires “The Work Breakdown Structure (WBS) contained in Attachment A, SOW, of this solicitation shall be used to structure the Mission Suitability Proposal.” However, the instructions for addressing the Understanding of the Requirement component indicate that offerors are to respond to three key functional areas that represent approximately half of the SOW. Please clarify the requirement to structure the Mission Suitability Volume using the WBS.

RESPONSE:  Yes, This is exactly what the government means. Slight modifications have been made in Section L, Subfactor A and Section M, Subfactor A.
61. QUESTION:  The instructions for responding to Sub-Factor C – Management Plan/Capabilities, on Page 20 of 50, reference ‘Exhibit 18’. However, no file or page released with the DRFP is labeled as Exhibit 18. Please clarify.

RESPONSE:  Exhibit 18 is the list of Government Position Descriptions and is now labeled accordingly.
62. QUESTION:  In a paragraph on Page 20 of 50, offerors are instructed to identify and describe the positions in Exhibit 18 that we propose as critical to successful performance on the SAS contract. In doing so, we are instructed to include the position title, to whom the position reports…” It is possible that multiple individuals with a given position title may report to different individuals in a proposed SAS organization. For example, different Senior Support Scientists may report to different Managers or even to the Program Manager depending on TO requirements. Please clarify the intent of this requirement.

RESPONSE:  This requirement has been deleted.
63. QUESTION:  The beginning paragraph and ending paragraph appearing on Page 22 of 50 both concern critical facilities and equipment. The first paragraph specifies “critical facilities and equipment” and the final paragraph on this page specifies “critical property and plant equipment.” Are these paragraphs duplicative requirements?

RESPONSE:  The second paragraph has been deleted. 

64. QUESTION:  L.16.3 - The first paragraph that appears on Page 22 of 50 requires that offerors “describe their plans for providing facilities for off-site personnel”. Will the final RFP include NASA’s minimum communications requirements to be supported, such as speed and security, between the SAS off-site facility and GSFC?

RESPONSE:  The government will not be defining the speed and security between SAS facilities and GSFC.

65.  QUESTION:  L17.1 - RFP paragraph L.17(1), at the bottom of Page 24 requires, “the offeror to submit electronic copies of the cost proposal charts contained in the reference exhibits in MS Excel format (as both spreadsheet and PDF) on CD-ROMs.” Is the Government requesting the offeror to submit one MS Excel version of all Exhibits and a second copy of those Exhibits converted to PDF on CD-ROMs?

RESPONSE:  The Government requires two electronic copies - one in Word/Excel and the other in PDF, all on one CD-ROM.  Two copies of the CD-ROM shall be provided.

66. QUESTION:  The Cost Proposal Instructions in L.17.2, appearing on Page 28 of 50, require that “…all Subcontractors (regardless of dollar value) included in Exhibit 1A shall complete Exhibits 2A and 2B, Offeror to Government Contract Non-Management Direct Labor Conversion.” However, Paragraph L.14 (a) 2 defines and requires that only the prime contractor and its significant subcontractor(s) submit a copy of their Cost Proposals to DCAA. Are subcontractors who are not considered ‘significant’ subcontractors required to submit copies of their Exhibits 2A and 2B to DCAA?

RESPONSE:  No, only significant subcontractors are required to submit information to DCAA. 

67. QUESTION:  There appears to be a potentially moderate amount of travel required to support the SOW requirements. Will the Government be including a ‘plug’ number for Other Direct Costs (ODCs) in the final RFP for field campaigns, etc.?

RESPONSE:  The government estimates that travel cost will be about $1 million over the life of the contract.

68. QUESTION:  L17.1 - RFP paragraph L.17(1), at the bottom of Page 24 requires, “the offeror to submit electronic copies of the cost proposal charts contained in the reference exhibits in MS Excel format (as both spreadsheet and PDF) on CD-ROMs.” Is the Government requesting the offeror to submit one MS Excel version of all Exhibits and a second copy of those Exhibits converted to PDF on CD-ROMs?

RESPONSE:  The Government requires two electronic copies - one in Word/Excel and the other in PDF. Two copies of the CD-ROM shall be provided.

69. QUESTION:  The Cost Proposal Instructions in L.17.2, appearing on Page 28 of 50, require that “…all Subcontractors (regardless of dollar value) included in Exhibit 1A shall complete Exhibits 2A and 2B, Offeror to Government Contract Non-Management Direct Labor Conversion.” However, Paragraph L.14 (a) 2 defines and requires that only the prime contractor and its significant subcontractor(s) submit a copy of their Cost Proposals to DCAA. Are subcontractors who are not considered ‘significant’ subcontractors required to submit copies of their Exhibits 2A and 2B to DCAA?

RESPONSE:  No, only significant subcontractors are required to submit information to DCAA. 

70. QUESTION:  This paragraph defines a ‘significant subcontractor’ for RTO purposes as “any subcontract exceeding the lower of 15% or more of the Government Pricing Model (GPM) or 15% of the RTO proposed value.” This seems to suggest that all ‘significant subcontractors’, regardless of whether or not they are proposed to support the RTO, are defined as ‘significant subcontractors’ for RTO purposes. Please clarify.

RESPONSE:  A significant subcontractor in the Request for Proposal is defined as a subcontractor who will perform 15% of the annual contract value.  The Government concurs that any subcontractor who will perform more than 15% of the work will be considered a significant subcontract regardless of RTO support. 

 71. QUESTION:  This paragraph, in the second from the last bullet, refers to “Section 1(g) instructions above.” Since there is no Section 1(g), should this be instead a reference to Section 2(g)?

RESPONSE:  The government concurs; the correct reference should be 2(g)
72. QUESTION:  This DRFP paragraph requires the offeror to instruct each of its references to return the Past Performance Questionnaire “directly to the NASA Goddard Space Flight Center Contracting Office.” Since the Past Performance Questionnaire in Exhibit 19 includes not only a mailing address, but also an email address and FAX number, will it be acceptable for the Government to receive these questionnaires via email? We find that many of our references prefer to email responses to these questionnaires and often do so despite our request that they use the addressed envelopes that we give them

RESPONSE:  Offerors can submit past performance questionnaire via email or facsimile at the email address and fax number in the solicitation. 
73. QUESTION:  There appear to be two RFP paragraphs labeled as L.19 in the DRFP. One appears on Page 35 of 50 and the second on Page 37 of 50.

RESPONSE:  The information has been corrected to reflect one L.19 and one L.20.

74. QUESTION:  This DRFP paragraph requires that the offeror provide a list of acronyms used in its proposal. It further requires that the list be comprehensive and be provided as Appendix A in three volumes: Mission Suitability, Cost, and Past Performance. Generally, we provide an acronym list in each of our proposal volumes that is specific to each volume, rather than a consolidated list of all acronyms used throughout all proposal volumes. Please clarify if you are requiring a single, consolidated acronym list, or requiring an independent list for each of the specified three volumes. 

RESPONSE:  The government requires a single comprehensive list; however copies shall be duplicated and placed in each volume of your proposal.
75. QUESTION:  Paragraph M.4 (a) indicates “The Government will evaluate the thoroughness, effectiveness, and completeness of the offeror’s detailed understanding of the nature of the support services required in the three key functional areas of instrumentation, data analysis, and numerical modeling.” The Weights and Scoring table at the end of M.4 indicates that the weights (points) associated with Sub-factor A – Understanding the Requirement is 350 points. Will these 350 points be equally divided between the three key functional areas of instrumentation, data analysis, and numerical modeling? Are each of the three key functional areas weighted identically, or is one more important than another and therefore weighted or scored with more points during the Government’s evaluation?

RESPONSE:  The Government is not weighting these three functional areas nor is it considered that there is a relative ranking of importance.  The Government’s intention is to receive responses from offerors focusing on these three areas to demonstrate their understanding and approach to meeting these requirements.  The evaluation will take into account the total response to Subfactor A.

76. QUESTION:  M.6 - In the second paragraph that appears on Page 48 of 50, the DRFP describes how the Government will determine the degree of Past Performance ‘relevance’. It appears that this description is part of the paragraph that discusses the minimal qualifications for a “significant subcontractor’s” contract references. Is it the Government’s intention to use an identical process in its determination of the degree of ‘relevance’ for the prime contractor’s contract references?

RESPONSE:  Yes, see changes in Section M.6
77. QUESTION:  Attachment A - In the Statement of Work (SOW), there may be some duplication in SOW Elements 1.5 and 1.6. Both of them have requirements to “design, draw, and fabricate electrical boards.” Please clarify.

RESPONSE:  The government has corrected the information in Section 1.5 and deleted the electrical board from that section of the SOW. 

78. QUESTION:  Through this Exhibit, it appears that the Government is using a Productive Work Year of 1856 hours. What is the basis for setting 1856 hours as the Productive Work Year?

RESPONSE:  The government standardized to this value.

79. QUESTION:  Exhibit 1A - This Exhibit provides a table for pricing Direct Labor for a Manufacturing Site as part of the Government Pricing Model. We understand the SOW requirements for instrument fabrication support and further understand that most of this support currently is provided on-site at GSFC. Do offerors need to propose an off-site instrument manufacturing site? If so, what capabilities are required at the manufacturing site?

RESPONSE:  The Mission Suitability Proposal Instructions (Section L.14) instruct offerors to describe all facilities and equipment required for performance of the contract under instructions for Subfactor C, Management Plan/Capabilities.  In Section M.3 under Subfactor C, Management Plan/Capabilities, the RFP states that the Government will “evaluate the adequacy of corporate resources in terms of staffing, corporate support, facilities and equipment, including relevance, sufficiency, and availability (either internal and/or external to the contractor) for  use under this requirement. “  The Government will not further specify the facilities and equipment necessary for performance of the contract.  Offerors are required to propose off-site rates for personnel per Exhibit 1A. 
80. QUESTION:  Exhibit 2A - The MS Excel version of Exhibit 2A requests Award Fee amount in column H, however the resultant contract is expected to be Fixed Fee. Please clarify.

RESPONSE:  The information is corrected to reflect Fixed Fee.

81. QUESTION:  Exhibit 4 - The MS Excel version of Exhibit 4 references Exhibit 1A under the Direct Labor Hours and Direct Labor Dollars section of the spreadsheet. Exhibit 1A is the Government Pricing Model, should the correct reference in Exhibit 4 be to Exhibit 4A?

RESPONSE:  The information has been corrected to reflect Exhibit 4A instead of 1A.

82. QUESTION:  Exhibit 4; L.17.2 (g) - One of the footnotes on this Exhibit states “List each significant subcontractor separately by name (>15% of a RTO estimate) – Labor and Total Costs.” However, paragraph L.17.2 (g) defines a ‘significant subcontractor’ for RTO purposes as “any subcontract exceeding the lower of 15% or more of the Government Pricing Model (GPM) or 15% of the RTO proposed value.” Which is correct?

RESPONSE:  The former is correct. A significant subcontractor is any subcontract exceeding 15% or more of the (GPM). The text has been corrected to reflect this change in L.17.2 (g).  

83. QUESTION:  The first bullet under section L.17 (2) (g), on Page 29 of 50, requires rates be provided in Exhibit 4A by month. Exhibit 4A currently requires only hours and cost by category. Should the offeror modify Exhibit 4A to include the rates or is cost information by category sufficient?

RESPONSE:  The bullet is corrected to read as follows: “change rates” to “cost” in section L17.2 (g)
84. QUESTION:  Exhibit 17 - The second sentence in the Representative Task Order (RTO) states “Relevant details are given in a number of papers and presentations that are included in the data base for the RFP.” However, we located no relevant papers or presentations within the current procurement library. Will these be made available prior to the release of the final RFP?

RESPONSE:  The information is posted on the procurement website http://atmospheres.gsfc.nasa.gov/procurement/ under “Papers and Presentations.” 
85. QUESTION:  Exhibit 17 - The RTO states that ARIES will have a High Resolution Visible Sensor (HIVIS) within it. Will HIVIS be integrated with the 1 km spatial resolution visible/near infrared radiometer or a separate imager on the spacecraft?

RESPONSE:  The RTO has been clarified to a separate HIVIS imager.
86. QUESTION:  Section IV in the Past Performance Questionnaire lists what are described in the questionnaire preface as the major elements of the SAS Statement of Work (SOW). The last six SOW elements in Section IV duplicate the first six in the list. 

RESPONSE:  The government has removed the duplicated information at the bottom of the Past Performance Questionnaire.

87. QUESTION:  Section L says the following:  The offeror shall describe the positions considered critical in Exhibit 18 to meet the requirements of the contract.  Are we to use only those positions descriptions supplied in Exhibit 18?  Do we use the descriptions, years of experience and experience verbatim?

RESPONSE:  All positions identified in exhibit 18 are considered critical by the government. Offerors are not required to identify any further critical positions in Exhibit 18. Offerors are required to utilize the position descriptions identified in exhibit 18. 
88. QUESTION:  In order for NASA GSFC to receive the best possible responses from industry, we request that all graphics, exhibits, figures, and tables be presented in 9 point Arial Narrow font.  Please confirm

RESPONSE:  The government has considered this request.  However, the instructions provided in L.14 (b) will remain unchanged. 
89. QUESTION:  In Section L.16.2 the Government states:  "The Work Breakdown Structure (WBS) contained in Attachment A, SOW of this solicitation shall be used to structure the Mission Suitability Proposal.  The Mission suitability Proposal and the Cost Proposal must follow the provided WBS.  Question:  The WBS in the SOW appears to only be applicable to Subfactor A - Understanding the Requirement.  The WBS provided in the SOW does not correspond to the Government's Section L and M for Subfactors B (The Representative Task Order), Subfactor C (The Management Plan) or the Deviations/Exceptions Sections.  Additionally the SOW WBS does not appear to be applicable with the specific guidance contained in Sections L and M for the Cost Volume.  Please clarify.

RESPONSE:  This section in L.16.2 is deleted from the solicitation.  There was no work breakdown structure provided in Attachment A and offerors are not required to respond using a WBS.

90. QUESTION:  Potential bidders recognize that instrumentation for sub-orbital flights is an important part of the support required by the Lab for Atmospheres. However, considering the unique nature of the work, it will be very difficult to provide Past Performance information by many, otherwise capable, contractors.

RESPONSE:  Past Performance information shall be provided that demonstrates relevant experience to meet the requirements of the SAS procurement as applicable.

91. QUESTION:  A contractor’s ability to understand the work, hire and manage the required staff can be assessed by its response to the SOW in the Mission Suitability volume.

RESPONSE:  The government concurs with your assessment.
92. QUESTION:  In order to obtain more proposals from qualified contractors, it will be in the best interest of the government if the Past Performance requirements for “sub-orbital” be deleted from the Past Performance questionnaire (Section IV).

RESPONSE:  Past Performance information shall be provided that demonstrates relevant experience to meet the requirements of the SAS procurement as applicable.
93. QUESTION:  The Past performance questionnaire (Section IV) appears to be coupled to Section V. Considering that the contract is set aside for small businesses, it will be in the best interest of the government to uncouple Section IV and Section V as this will enable more qualified contractors to respond to the RFP. If these were uncoupled, small businesses will be able to cite performances for larger contracts with thresholds provided by the government in response to Section V and they will be able to provide citations for other smaller contracts in response the SOW items identified in Section IV. 

RESPONSE:  Sections IV and V are not coupled other than the common requirement that the past performance threshold is $2M annually within the last five years.

94. QUESTION:  Please clarify if all the Mechanical design work for the boards will be under SOW 1.5 and all the electrical design work for boards will be under SOW 1.6.

RESPONSE:  The government has corrected the information in Section 1.5 and deleted the electrical board from that section of the SOW. 

95. QUESTION:  Regarding SOW Section 3.11.10, there appears to be only one LAS project related to this topic--the assimilation of AIRS retrieved temperature profiles and this work is being done collaboratively with the GMAO. Please clarify what additional work is be covered by this section of the SOW.

RESPONSE:  The functional requirements in Section 3.11.10 are within the scope of work of the SAS RFP regardless of current work and collaborations. 

96. QUESTION:  Pre/post-launch: Will the Government provide source code used to produce MODIS and AIRS level-2 and level-3 products, particularly those used in the development of a “seamless” long term climate data set.

RESPONSE:  The offeror shall assume for the purposes of the response that the source code would be provided by the Government as part of the reference task.  Neither the RFP nor the RFP reference library will provide actual source code.
97. QUESTION:  Pre-launch: Is the contractor to provide code that is optimized for operational performance, science performance, or both?

RESPONSE:  Optimize in “pre-launch” refers to both operational and science performance.

98. QUESTION:  Post-launch: What are the contractor's responsibilities, if any, at the DISC? I.e., does the contractor propose software and parameter changes, test changes on a mirror of the operational thread, and/or insert changes into the operational stream? Does the contractor maintain the official operational software and parameters?

RESPONSE:  The RTO does not support operations at the DISC.
99. QUESTION:  Will the Government provide a reference library, as stated in the cover letter dated December 8, 2010?

RESPONSE:  The reference library is located on the procurement website at http://atmospheres.gsfc.nasa.gov/procurement/
100. QUESTION:  Regarding Section L.12 (b) - If the Offeror maintains a policy on the management of government property but does not possess a control system analysis, can the Offeror provide a description of its standard business practices for government management to satisfy the requirements of this section?

RESPONSE:  No, the Business Practices and Property Management Procedures must be submitted with the Offeror’s proposal as part of their response for review.

101. QUESTION:  Regarding Section L.15 (c) – If the Offeror maintains policies on their business systems (e.g., property, purchasing, estimating, and employee compensation) but they have yet to be accepted/approved by the Government, may the Offeror’s current policies be thoroughly described to satisfy the requirements of this section?

RESPONSE:  Yes, the Offeror can submit as part of their response a detailed description of their policies of their business systems. 

102. QUESTION:  Regarding Section L.15 (c) – If the Offeror’s accounting system is adequate for determining costs under a cost-reimbursement contract but has not yet been audited by the cognizant administrative office, is an Offeror still eligible to bid under this solicitation? What if the Offeror has requested an audit and has been declined by the cognizant administrative office?

RESPONSE:  The government cannot preclude anyone from bidding on a solicitation. However, because it is a requirement that the offeror's accounting system be deemed adequate an approved accounting system is required at the time of contract award. 
103. QUESTION:  Is the title Support for Atmospheric Sciences or Support for Atmospheric Services? The RFP refers to it as both.

RESPONSE:  The correct title is “Support for Atmospheric Sciences.”
104. QUESTION:  We understand that the government will provide on-site office space for a portion of the contractor personnel needed to perform work, and that the remainder of personnel needed to meet the requirements will be housed at the contractor's off-site office facilities.  For planning and costing purposes, can the government please provide the number of on-site office spaces currently provided to the incumbent, and if different, the number of on-site office spaces the government plans to provide to the contractor under the new contract?

RESPONSE:  The government will not be providing this information and deems it unnecessary for responding to this requirement.

105. QUESTION:  Sec. L.14 (a) (4), p.11. Should the electronic copies of the proposal files for the distinct volumes be separate CDs or can the files for all volumes be included in a single CD?  

RESPONSE:  The government requires that all documentation be placed on a single CD-ROM. However, the offeror shall submit 2 copies of the CD-ROM with their proposal.
106. QUESTION:  Please clarify the meaning of the forward slash in ‘cost/fee’ (appears on pages 32,33,47,48,49 in DRFP Section L,M).  

RESPONSE: The term “Cost/Fee” is intended to represent the total contract value (Cost Incurred + Fee Earned).
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